
 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

 
 

Agenda 
Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council 

City of Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia 
August 4, 2020 / 6:00 p.m. 

 
Note:  Meeting is being held as a virtual meeting only.  Please visit  
www.chatthillsga.us for information on accessing the meeting via  

teleconference or videoconference.  
 
Call to Order 
 
Review and Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 

1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 7, 2020 
 

Public Comments 
 
Presentations / Proclamations  (None) 
 
Staff Reports 
Financial Update: Robbie Rokovitz  
Fire Department Report: Greg Brett 
Police Department Report: Jim Little 
Public Works/Parks Report: Darold Wendlandt 
Community Development Report: Mike Morton 
 
Public Hearing   

1. Item 20-022:  Public Hearing on an Ordinance to fix the Ad Valorem Tax Rate for 
Fiscal Year 2021. (No action will be taken.) 
 

Unfinished Business  (None) 
 

New Business   
1. Item 20-023:  Award contract for Wayfinding Signs Program Services to ASI Signage 

Innovations. 
2. Item 20-024:  Resolution Authorizing, Among Other Things, the Execution of 

Documents Relating to the Acquisition of Land and Disposition of Land for a Park and 
for Other Related Purposes. 

 
Mayor and Council Comments 
 
Executive Session   

1. To discuss legal matters. 
 



 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

 
 

Adjourn Meeting 
 
Town Hall Session 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 
reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 
of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 
by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

1 

 

 

 
 
 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council 

City of Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia  
July 7, 2020 / 6:00 p.m. 

 
Call to Order 

Mayor Reed called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m.  Councilmembers in attendance 
were Ruby Foster, Richard Schmidt, Laurie Searle, and Alan Merrill. Troy Bettis was 
absent.  Also present was City Attorney Rick Lindsey.  The meeting was held via 
videoconference/teleconference. 

 
Review and Approval of Agenda 

Mayor Reed called for a motion to amend the agenda as follows: 
1. Move Item No. 20-018, Approval of an Ordinance to amend and revise Chapter 2, 

Article I, Administration Ordinance, to add a Provision providing for Teleconference 
Meetings for Councilmembers and Commission Members to attend via Teleconference, 
and for Other Purposes, to immediately after agenda approval.  

2. Add Item No. 20-022, a presentation by Lynn Merrill and a Resolution accepting a 
donation for Chattahoochee Hills citizens for the purchase of a Stryker Lucas Chest 
Compression System in the amount of $19,580.60, immediately following Item No. 20-
018. 

Councilmember Merrill made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  
Councilmember Foster seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
New Business Items 

1. Item 20-018:  Approval of an Ordinance to amend and revise Chapter 2, Article I, 
Administration Ordinance, to add a Provision providing for Teleconference Meetings 
for Councilmembers and Commission Members to attend via Teleconference, and for 
Other Purposes. 

City Attorney Rick Lindsey presented the item.  The ordinance mirrors state law. Other than 
in emergency conditions or written notice from a health professional, members shall be 
limited to attending meetings via teleconference to two times per calendar year.  
 
Mayor Reed called for a motion on Item No. 20-018.  Councilmember Merrill made a 
motion to approve Item No. 20-018.  Councilmember Foster seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
2. Item 20-022:  Presentation by Lynn Merrill and a Resolution accepting a donation from 

Chattahoochee Hills citizens for the purchase of a Stryker Lucas Chest Compression 
System in the amount of $19,580.60. 

Lynn Merrill presented a check to be used to purchase a chest compression device for the 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 
reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 
of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 
by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

2 

 

 

 Chattahoochee Hills Fire Department.  Forty-one donors led by the Serenbe Community 
Care Network raised the funds to purchase the device.    
 
Fire Chief Greg Brett said this is a gift for everyone and is an example of those in our 
community giving back to the community. 
 
City Manager Robbie Rokovitz read the resolution. 
 
Mayor Reed called for a motion on Item No. 20-022.  Councilmember Searle made a 
motion to approve Item No. 20-022.  Councilmember Schmidt seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 

Approval of Minutes 
1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 2, 2020 
2. Minutes of the Special Called Meeting of June 11, 2020 

Councilmember Schmidt made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of June 2, 2020 and the Special Called Meeting of June 11, 2020. Councilmember Merrill 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Presentations/Proclamations 
There were no presentations/proclamations. 
 

Public Comment 
Donald Winston, 9875 Cedar Grove Road – spoke about issues regarding large parties 
being held at a neighbor’s house.  He said there were parties held on Memorial Day 
weekend and 4th of July weekend, and the traffic and people standing in the road was so 
bad he would not  have been able to get out if there were an emergency.  He urged the 
city to take legal action against the property owner and said he may need to take legal 
action against the owner and the city if nothing is done. 
 
Danean Crawford, 5575 Cochran Mill Road (written comments read by City Attorney Rick 
Lindsey) – commented on issues concerning property lines, ordinances, fences and proper 
procedures.  Her mother is having an issue with a new neighbor who installed a border 
fence which encroached on her mother’s property and enclosed a shared pond.  She said 
the city needs to re-evaluate the ordinance regarding fences and property lines.  She sees 
a need for adequate procedures to protect the citizen and the city government from legal 
ramifications. 

 
Staff Reports 
Financial Update: City Manager Robbie Rokovitz 

Mr. Rokovitz reported on the financials as of June 29, 2020.  The city is 99 percent 
through the fiscal year.  Revenues are 103.8 percent not including the Fund Balance 
from the prior year, and there are still additional LOST and TSPLOST payments that 
have not yet been received.  General Fund expenditures are 71.3 percent, and total 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 
reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 
of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 
by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

3 

 

 

expenditures are 68.6%.    
 
Fire Department Report: Greg Brett 

Chief Brett reported that call volume was down slightly for the month of June even 
though the department responded to four rescue incidents in Cochran Mill Park.  
There are a few Firefighters that have had to be quarantined due to COVID-19.  He 
gave current statistics on the increase of positive cases of COVID-19 in the county and 
state.  He also commented on the city’s relationship with Atlanta Department of 
Watershed Management.  He said when issues such as the recent boil water advisory 
occurs, the city is notified immediately and can push the information out to citizens 
quickly.  He also said the Department is responsive to issues caused by the flush 
systems. 
 

Police Department Report: Jim Little 
Chief Little reported that calls are down about 35 percent and there were no auto 
accidents in the city in the month of June.  Officer Queen is on the second phase of 
field training.  Part-time Officer Tony Brown resigned/retired.  There was a case of 
illegal dumping on Wilkerson Mill Road where a dump truck drove around barriers 
and dumped three truckloads of debris.  The driver was tracked down and has been 
charged.  Chief Little also addressed Mr. Winston’s issue with the parties on Cedar 
Grove Road.   
 

Public Works/Parks Report: Darold Wendlandt 
Mr. Wendlandt reported that business is back to normal on roads and that the parks 
continue to be well used.  He also reported that the John Deere tractor is currently 
inoperable and has been pulled out of service, leaving only the two New Holland tractors 
for right-of-way cutting. 
 

Community Development: Cheryl Brooks 
Ms. Brooks reported there were a total of nine building permits issued in June, with four of 
them for single family dwellings in Heatherwood Manor.  She gave an update on the 
Campbellton Master Plan.  There will be a Pop-up event in Campbellton on July 11th and a 
Virtual Workshop on July 16th.  The next Planning Commission meeting has been 
rescheduled to July 23rd.  Mado Paving has been completed, and the Imagine Festival 
permit has been declined due to a missed deadline and COVID-19 concerns. 

 
Public Hearing  

1. Item 20-015:  Public Hearing and Approval of Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) 
finding for proposed City Boat Ramp and parking lot at Campbellton Park, 8655 
Cochran Rd, Fairburn, GA 30213 under the Metropolitan River Protection Act (Georgia 
O.C.G.A. Section 12-5-440). The ARC finding is that the proposed project is consistent 
with the Plan. 

Parks Commission Chair Diana Wilson presented the item.  In December 2018, the city 
entered into an agreement with the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to build a 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 
reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 
of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 
by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

4 

 

 

 boat ramp at Campbellton Park at no cost to the city.  The DNR has been working on the 
many required permits for that last couple of years.  The Atlanta Regional Commission has 
reviewed and approved the plan, and if approved by Council, construction will start in two 
weeks. 
 
Mayor Reed opened the public hearing. 

 
There was no public comment. 
 
Mayor Reed closed the public hearing.   
 
Councilmember Merrill called for a motion on Item No. 20-015.  Councilmember Searle 
made a motion to approve Item No. 20-015.   Councilmember Foster seconded.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

Unfinished Business   
There was no unfinished business. 
 

New Business (continued) 
1. Item 20-016:  Approval of Concept Plan for Serenbe Farmettes Tract C. 
City Planner Cheryl Brooks presented the item.  The plan is for three five-acre lots on the 
east side of Watkins Road.  The three lots are outside the required HM district buffer and 
must follow the RL District requirements.  Both the Planning Commission and staff 
recommend approval. 
 
Mayor Reed called for a motion on Item No. 20-016.  Councilmember Schmidt made a 
motion to approve Item No. 20-016.   Councilmember Merrill seconded. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
2. Item 20-017:  Approval of Automatic Aid Agreement with City of South Fulton Fire 

& Rescue. 
Fire Chief Greg Brett presented the item.  ISO recognizes the agreement as beneficial 
for homeowner’s insurance.  Legal counsel for both cities have approved the 
agreement. 
 
Mayor Reed called for a motion on Item No. 20-017.  Councilmember Merrill made a 
motion to approve Item No. 20-017.  Councilmember Schmidt seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
3. Item 20-019:  Resolution appointing Historic Commission members. 
4. Item 20-020:  Resolution appointing Parks Commission members. 
5. Item 20-021:  Resolution appointing Planning Commission members.  
Mayor Reed presented Item No. 20-019, Item No. 20-020, and Item No. 20-021.  The 
members on the Parks Commission and Planning Commission will remain the same.  



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 
reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 
of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 
by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

5 

 

 

The members on the Historic Commission remain the same with the addition of Amber 
Lightsey and Gene Griffith.   
 
Mayor Reed called for a motion on Item No. 20-019, Item No. 20-020, and Item No. 20-
021.  Councilmember Schmidt made a motion to approve Item No. 20-019, Item No. 
20-020, and Item No. 20-021.  Councilmember Searle seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
Mayor and Council Comments 

Councilmember Schmidt thanked Police Chief Little for what he was doing with the 
Cedar Grove party situation.  He said that he had a long conversation with the City 
Manager about the issue and had received a lot of calls over the weekend.  He also 
expressed concern about the damage to Wilkerson Mill Road being caused by trucks. 
He thanked Fire Chief Brett for his working with the City of South Fulton on the 
automatic aid agreement and said it was a good thing for the city.  He told the Council 
that he would like everyone to think about getting the two additional staff for Public 
Works/Parks and the additional parking fee kiosks for the parks.   
 
Councilmember Searle said instead of additional parking meters, they may want to 
consider the old fashion paper envelopes and drop box as back up. 
 
Councilmember Foster thanked the staff and Parks Commission members Diana 
Wilson and Tom Blum for their help with the District 1 Town Hall meeting.    
 
Councilmember Merrill said he was sad to see the numbers on the COVID-19 pandemic 
continue to grow.  Knowing that we now have firefighters and members of their 
families affected brings it closer to home.  He encouraged everyone to wear masks and 
practice social distancing.   
 
Mayor Reed thanked everyone for their flexibility on the decision to hold the meeting 
virtually.  He said that the reality is we are at a higher level now than when we shut 
down a few months ago.  He encouraged everyone to take the COVID-19 virus 
seriously and encouraged everyone to wear masks when around others and take care 
of themselves.  He also thanked the returning and new Commission members who are 
willing to step up and volunteer.  
 
Councilmember Searle asked if the recordings of the meetings could be posted on the 
website.  City Manager Robbie Rokovitz said he will post the recordings to the website 
but will have to delete them every thirty days or so due to storage capacity.  
 

Executive Session    
There was no Executive Session. 

 
 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 
reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 
of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 
by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

6 

 

 

 
Adjourn Meeting   

Councilmember Merrill made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember 
Schmidt seconded. The motion passed unanimously, and the meeting adjourned at 
7:03 p.m. 

 
 
Approved this _____ day of ________________, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Dana Wicher, City Clerk Tom Reed, Mayor 



Revenues: FY2020
Amended

FY2020 (YTD)
July 27

%
Collected

FY2021
Adopted

FY2021 (YTD)
July 27

%
Collected

Property Taxes 1,750,000$              -$                              0.0% 1,750,000$            -$                              0.0%
L.O.S.T. 660,000$                 -$                              0.0% 480,000$               -$                              0.0%
Intangible Tax 27,000$                   -$                              0.0% 30,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Motor Vehicle Tax 6,400$                      -$                              0.0% 10,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Motor Vehicle Tax - Ad Valorem 19,038$                   -$                              0.0% 20,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Real Estate Transfer Tax 10,000$                   -$                              0.0% 10,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Business & Occupation Tax 16,000$                   175$                         1.1% 25,000$                 511$                         2.0%
Insurance Premium Tax 200,615$                 -$                              0.0% 180,000$               -$                              0.0%
Alcohol Beverage Tax 20,000$                   -$                              0.0% 15,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Franchise Fees 145,228$                 -$                              0.0% 145,000$               -$                              0.0%
Licenses & Permits 100,000$                 2,454$                      2.5% 80,000$                 5,119$                      6.4%
Charges for Service 75,000$                   1,530$                      2.0% 60,000$                 2,258$                      3.8%
Charges for Service (Parking Fees) 60,000$                   7,194$                      12.0% 60,000$                 9,044$                      15.1%
Charges for Service (Hunting Lease) -$                              -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmental (Conservation) 651,540$                 -$                              0.0% 125,000$               -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmetnal (CDBG) -$                              -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmental (LMIG Grant) 110,102$                 -$                              0.0% 138,801$               -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmental (RTP) -$                              -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmental (CDAP) -$                              -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              100.0%
Fines & Forfeitures 145,000$                 -$                              0.0% 125,000$               -$                              0.0%
Insurance Proceeds 28,729$                   -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Contributions & Donations 1,000$                      -$                              0.0% -$                            19,600$                   100.0%
Interest 18,000$                   -$                              0.0% 7,000$                   -$                              0.0%
Other Revenues 16,125$                   7,686$                      0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Lease -$                              -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Running Fund Balance From Prior Year 1,609,630$              935,780$                 58.1% 960,501$               1,151,904$              0.0%

GF Revenue Subtotal: 5,669,407$              954,819$                 16.8% 4,221,302$           1,188,436$              28.2%

Other Financing Sources:
Hotel/Motel Tax 155,000                   -                                0.0% 75,000$                 -$                              0%

189,239$                 189,239                   0.0% 90,000$                 237,389$                 100%
TSPLOST 450,000                   -                                0.0% 350,000$               -$                              0%
TSPLOST Fund Balance 120,431$                 14,765                      0.0% 303,250$               306,744$                 100%
Subtotal Other Financing Sources: 914,670$                 204,004$                 22.3% 818,250$               544,133$                 66%

 Total Operating Revenue: 6,584,077$              954,819$                 14.5% 5,039,552$           1,732,570$              34%

Expenditures: FY2020
Amended

FY2020 (YTD)
July 27

%
Expended

FY2021
Adopted

FY2021 (YTD)
July 27

%
Expended

Mayor & Council 125,284$                 7,942$                      6.3% 126,546$               313$                         0.2%
City Clerk 56,231$                   3,421$                      6.1% 61,576$                 2,982$                      4.8%
City Manager 145,403$                 12,302$                   8.5% 146,397$               12,116$                   8.3%
General Administration 159,065$                 12,802$                   8.0% 147,575$               7,578$                      5.1%
IT 31,968$                   19,477$                   60.9% 33,385$                 3,031$                      9.1%
Non-Departmental Insurance 91,593$                   45,379$                   49.5% 69,992$                 37,133$                   53.1%
Municipal Court 99,806$                   8,262$                      8.3% 92,095$                 6,045$                      6.6%
Police 889,292$                 103,229$                 11.6% 863,513$               51,078$                   5.9%
Fire 909,279$                 100,125$                 11.0% 845,578$               65,745$                   7.8%
Public Works 528,114$                 60,363$                   11.4% 524,255$               32,943$                   6.3%
Engineering 5,000$                      -$                              0.0% 5,000$                   -$                              0.0%
Parks & Recreation 99,422$                   11,416$                   11.5% 104,986$               4,902$                      4.7%
Community Development 245,529$                 8,886$                      3.6% 219,140$               11,461$                   5.2%
Contingency - Reserved Fund Balance 1,083,297$              -$                              0.0% 237,087$               -$                              0.0%

-$                              -$                              0.0% -$                            -$                              0.0%
Subtotal: 4,469,284$              393,605$                 8.8% 3,477,127$           235,328$                 6.8%

Other GF Financing Uses:
Interest - Capital Lease 16,504$                   5,927$                      35.9% 11,868$                 3,034$                      25.6%
Capital Lease Payment 145,341$                 67,665$                   46.6% 126,866$               46,827$                   36.9%
Capital Fund 957,331$                 28,876$                   3.0% 341,640$               -$                              0.0%
Grants 202,072$                 -$                              0.0% 263,801$               -$                              0.0%

Subtotal: 1,321,248$              102,469$                 7.8% 744,175$               49,861$                   6.7%
Total GF Expenditures 5,790,532$              496,074$                 8.6% 4,221,302$           285,189$                 6.8%

(121,125)$                458,746$                 (0)$                          903,248$                 

Other Financing Uses:
Hotel Motel 223,115$                 -$                              0.0% 165,000$               500$                         0.3%
TSPLOST 570,431$                 -$                              0.0% 653,250$               -$                              0.0%
Subtotal Other Financing Uses: 793,546$                 -$                              0.0% 818,250$               500$                         0.1%

6,584,078$              496,074$                 7.5% 5,039,552$           285,689$                 5.7%
6,584,077$              954,819$                 15% 5,039,552$           1,732,570$              34%

(1)$                            458,746$                 (0)$                          1,446,881$              

Expenditure Month To Date  Cash Flow 
Police (Vehicles) -$                              July  27, 2019 (Balance) 903,248$      
Police (Capital) -$                              September 3, 2019 (Balance) 
Fire (Apparatus/Capital) -$                              September 23, 2019 (Balance) 
PW Vehicle(s) -$                              October 28, 2019 (Balance) 
LMIG (Capital) -$                              November 8, 2019 (Balance) 
Off System Safety Grant -$                              December 30, 2019 (Balance) 
PW Capital (TSPLOST) -$                              January 27, 2020 (Balance) 
TSPLOST (Contract Mgt) -$                              March 2, 2020 (Balance) 

-$                              March  31, 2020 (Balance) 
Land Acqusition -$                              April  17, 2020 (Balance) 

May 31, 2020 (Balance) 
Expenditure June 29, 2020 (Balance) 

-$                              
-$                              

Capital Category

City of Chattahoochee Hills, GA
FY2021 Budget

Budget to Actual as of July 27 2020 - 7.4% of Year Lapsed

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Balance

Unclassified

GF  Revenues in Excess of Expenditures 

Total ALL FUNDS Expenditures
Total ALL FUNDS Revenues
 Revenues in Excess of Expenditures  

Capital Category

TSPLOST Fund

RTP Grant
LMIG 

G
F

B
a
n
k 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t



 

 

 

MAYOR 

Tom Reed 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

Ruby Foster 

Richard Schmidt 

Laurie Searle 

Alan Merrill 

Troy Bettis 

 
 

CITY MANAGER 

Robert T. Rokovitz 

 

 
www.chatthillsga.us 
 
(770) 463-8881 
 
Fax (770) 463-8550 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                          6505 Rico Road Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia  30268 

 

 

 

TO:  Mayor and Council 
 
CC:  Dana Wicher 
  
DATE:  July 27th, 2020 for August 27th, 2020 Special Called Meeting 
 
RE:  2020 Millage Rate 
 
The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor & Council will be holding a public meeting in 
advance of setting its 2020 millage rate.  The current millage rate which has not changed 
in the last three years is 10.00.  According to the Fulton County Tax Commissioner’s 
Office, the Net Digest increased 10 % from $192,868,744 to $211,748,965.  This increase 
yielded a rollback calculation of .29 mills from 10.00 to 9.71 to remain “revenue neutral”.   
However, the recommendation is to maintain the current millage rate.  Even though that 
is the current rate, the increase in property values creates a 2.99% difference in millage 
rates between 10.00 and 9.71. This requires three Public Hearings.   
 
All concerned citizens were invited to two public hearings on Thursday, August 20th at 
11:00 am and 5:00 pm.  The third public hearing is being held at a regularly advertised 
City Council meeting at City Hall, 6505 Rico Road, Chattahoochee Hills, GA on August 
27th, 2020 at 6:00 PM.  The final adoption on this millage rate will be at after this third 
and final public hearing at City Hall, 6505 Rico Road, Chattahoochee Hills, GA. 
 
This tentative recommendation will result in a millage rate of 10.00 mills.  Property taxes 
are based on 40% of the assessed value less any exemptions and then multiplied by the 
set millage rate.      
 
The City offers a homestead exemption of $15,000 which must be filed prior to April 1st 
of the respective tax year.  There are additional exemptions for seniors age 65 and older 
and age 70 and older.  Seniors in those age brackets may also qualify for additional 
exemptions up to including a full exemption after age 70 under certain income 
restrictions. 
 

 
 

2008 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Real & Personal 191,994,110$          175,240,319$          187,648,751$          237,715,608.00$            258,479,039.00$            277,435,880.00$            
Motor Vehicle 7,005,576                 3,024,070$               2,179,440$               1,676,130$                      1,360,490$                      1,235,520$                      
Mobile Homes 0 -$                               -$                               -$                                      -$                                      -$                                      
Timber - 100% 0 -$                               68,310$                    17,255$                           9,600$                              84,743$                           
Heavy Duty Equipment 0 -$                               -$                               21,700$                           -$                                      -$                                      
Gross Digest 198,999,686             178,264,389$          189,896,501$          239,430,693.00$            259,849,129.00$            278,756,143.00$            
Less M & O Exemptions 49,058,130               55,019,210$             54,164,300$             65,419,380$                    66,980,385$                    67,007,178$                    
Net M & O Digest 149,941,556             123,245,179$          135,732,201$          174,011,313.00$            192,868,744.00$            211,748,965.00$            
State of GA Forest Land
Assistance Grant Value 0 16,243,527$             16,193,501$             -$                                      -$                                      -$                                      
Adjusted Net M & O Digest 139,488,706$          151,925,702$          174,011,313.00$            192,868,744.00$            211,748,965.00$            

Gross M & O Millage Rate 5.659 10.958 10.958 10 10 10
Less Millage Rate Rollbacks 0.000 0.000 -0.958 0.000 0.000 0.000
Net M & O Millage Rate 5.659 10.958 10.000 10 10 10

Net Taxies Levied 848,519                    1,528,517                 1,519,257                 1,740,113                        1,928,687                        2,117,490                        

Net Tax $ Increase -                                 53,690                       (9,260)                        220,856                           188,574                           188,802                           
Net Tax % Increase 0% 3.6% -0.6% 14.5% 11% 10%

http://www.chatthillsga.us/


STATE OF GEORGIA            ORDINANCE NO. 20-07-XXX 
COUNTY OF FULTON 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  

CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS, GEORGIA, TO FIX THE AD VALOREM TAX RATE OF 
THE CITY OF CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021;  

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Chattahoochee Hills, 
Georgia as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The ad valorem tax rate for the City of Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia for the 
2020 calendar year, on property subject to ad valorem taxation by the City is hereby fixed at $10.00 
on forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of property subject to ad valorem tax by the City. 
 

SECTION 2.  Said rate of $10.00 on forty percent (40%) of each $1,000.00 of taxable 
property is hereby levied for General Government purposes. 
 

SECTION 3.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed; and  
 
Date approved: August 4, 2020. 
 
       
 
 
          _____________________________ 
               Tom Reed, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: ______________________________ 
 Dana Wicher, City Clerk 
 
 
 (Seal) 



 

 

 

MAYOR 

Tom Reed 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 

Ruby Foster 

Richard Schmidt 

Laurie Searle 

Alan Merrill 

Troy Bettis 

 
 

CITY MANAGER 

Robert T. Rokovitz 

 

 
www.chatthillsga.us 
 
(770) 463-8881 
 
Fax (770) 463-8550 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                          6505 Rico Road Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia  30268 

 

 

 

TO:  Mayor and Council 
 
CC:  Dana Wicher 
  
DATE:  July 25, 2020 for August 4th, 2020 Council Meeting 
 
RE:  Wayfinding Signage Program 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends Council’s consideration to award a contract to ASI Signage 
Innovations in an amount not to exceed an estimated $107,700 using Hotel Motel Funds 
for Wayfinding Sign Program Services which will include the following: 
 

 
 
Background: 
 
The wayfinding program discussions started back in 2013 with City leaders and 
community stakeholders partnering with the Atlanta Regional Commission and the “Our 
Town” grant that the National Endowment for the Arts (NEA).  These discussions 
culminated in design services by Denyse to design, fabricate and install our gateway sign.  
Continuing with those design standards and theme, we sought some additional designs 
from Denyse for some gateway signs.  While the designs the presented were consistent 
with the Gateway sign design, there were some elements that did not seem congruent 
with the desire of the community stakeholders. 
 
In April of 2019, the City Council adopted a Wayfinding Policy that established 
procedures for those who want to participate and have their destination listed.  However, 

Design Team ASI
Strategic Implementation Plan 5,100$                    
Wayfinding Analysis 3,200$                    
Programming (identification of Sign Locations and Messages) 1,800$                    
Schematic Design 4,500$                    
Design Development/Shop - Bid Drawings 10,800$                  
Documentation -$                            
Fabrication (Contract Mgt. Only) -$                            
Final Inspection -$                            

Subtotal 25,400$                 
Expenses/Travel -$                            
Expenses/Other -$                            

Subtotal -$                            
Total: 25,400$                 

Fabrication (Contract Mgt, Fabrication and Installation) 82,500$                 

http://www.chatthillsga.us/


Wayfinding Agenda Report (August 4th, 2020)  Page 2 of 3 
 

an approved contractor was still not selected at that time.  Fast forward to June of 2020, 
the Council directed the city manager to present a RFP for consideration at the July 2nd 
City Council Work Session. Upon receiving consensus to move forward, the RFP process 
was initiated.      
 
RFP Issue Date ................................................................................................ July 7, 2020 
 
Pre-Proposal Conference (Optional but recommended)............. July 14, 2020 (2:00 p.m.) 
 
Deadline for Receipt of Written Questions  ............................... July 17, 2020 (5:00 p.m.) 
 
Deadline for Posting Answers to the City’s Website ................. July 20, 2020 (5:00 p.m.) 
 
RFP Response Due Date .......................................................... July 24, 2020 (12:00 p.m.) 
 
Bid Opening  ............................................................................... July 24, 2020(12:05 pm) 
 
Intended Date for Contract Award  ........................................... August 4, 2020 (6:00 pm) 
 
Discussion: 
 
The recommendation for ASI is based primarily on their bid that included the facilitation 
of the bid process for fabrication.  The cost of ASI without fabrication is $25,200 which 
is the lowest bidder for design services. The design-build combination would be a turn-
key process for the City and contribute to an accelerated and smooth transition from 
design to installation of the wayfinding signage. 
 
The turn-key process has been presented to include the following wayfinding signage:    
 
Approximately: (4) High Priority Directional Signs 
Approximately: (5) Medium Priority Directional Signs 
Approximately: (2) Low Priority Directional Signs 
Approximately: (3) High Priority gateways 
Approximately: (1) Medium Priority gateways 
Approximately: (3) Medium Priority gateways 
Approximately: (4) Public Parks 
Approximately: (16) Event Sites 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Currently, we have $237,390 in the Hotel Motel Fund Account.  This does not include 
any revenues that are projected for FY2021.  The FY2021 has $55,895 designated as a 
transfer to the General Fund for Tourism Product Development, $60,000 is designated 
for Parks, and $25,000 is designated for signs.  Even without the current fund balance, 
we have budgeted $80,895 in FY2021 for Tourism Product Development.  Thus, the 
funds are available for this program.         
 



Wayfinding Agenda Report (August 4th, 2020)  Page 3 of 3 
 

The fiscal impact for design services only is estimated to be an amount not to exceed* 
$107,700.  This is for design only.  Once the design is done, the City would go back out 
for bid on the fabrication and installation.  
 

 
 
* The $82,500 is an estimate to fabricate wayfinding signs using the materials specified 
below: 
 

A) Material; wood for standards, frames and backing 
B) Color” “Horse-Fence” black or creosote brown 
C) Brackets: metal brackets for temporary informational signs. 
D) Typeface: neutral display titling Chattahoochee Hills  
E) Image: each standard is identified with a Chattahoochee Hills branded logo.  

Alternatives: 
 

Reject all bids 
Accept the design only bid from Sky Designs in an amount of $31,700. 

 
Attachments: 
 

Bid Tab Sheet 
 
Additionally reviewed by: 
 
Rick Lindsey, City Attorney  

 

Design Team ASI Sky Design CallisonRTKL MKSK
Strategic Implementation Plan 5,100$                    -$                            10,200$                  10,000$                  
Wayfinding Analysis 3,200$                    -$                            10,400$                  12,500$                  
Programming (identification of Sign Locations and Messages) 1,800$                    5,750$                    8,400$                    12,500$                  
Schematic Design 4,500$                    4,500$                    18,900$                  20,000$                  
Design Development/Shop - Bid Drawings 10,800$                  5,250$                    13,700$                  18,500$                  
Documentation -$                            5,250$                    9,000$                    20,000$                  
Fabrication (Contract Mgt. Only) -$                            5,500$                    6,000$                    5,000$                    
Final Inspection -$                            -$                            4,500$                    1,000$                    

Subtotal 25,400$                 26,250$                 81,100$                 99,500$                 
Expenses/Travel -$                            -$                            5,300$                    2,000$                    
Expenses/Other -$                            5,500$                    -$                            1,500$                    

Subtotal -$                            5,500$                    5,300$                    3,500$                    
Total: 25,400$                 31,750$                 86,400$                 103,000$               

Fabrication (Contract Mgt, Fabrication and Installation) 82,500$                 No Bid No Bid No Bid



Bid Posting: Wednesday, July 28, 2020

Bid Deadline:  July 24, 2020 Time: 12:00 PM

Bid Opening:  July 24, 2020 Time: 12:01 PM

Bid Award: TBD Apparent Low Bidder ‐ Pending Review

Company Representative Bond Design Services Fabrication Email

ASI David Bodzy 25,200.00$                   82,500$                              david.bodzy@asisignage.com

Sky Design Katie Bruckner/Tiffany Chen 31,700.00$                   Not Included kbruckner@asdnet.com

CallisonRTKL Frank Christian 84,400.00$                   Not Included frank.christian@crtkl.com

MKSK Niels Braam 102,750.00$                Not Included nbraam@mksstudios.com

A notification of award will not be issued until after all bids are thoroughly reviewed to ensure that all specifications/scope of work as required 
in the bid package have been addressed and until the expiration period for protest.

It is always the intent of the City to award the lowest priced responsible/responsive bidder that best meets the City of Chattahoochee Hills' 
specifications as determined by the City.  A notice of intent letter will be sent to all bidders only in the case of a bid awarded to another vendor 
other than the apparent low bidder as stated on the bid results.

City of Chattahoochee Hills
Wayfinding

Invitation to Bid

Department of Public Works 1 Thursday, August 25, 2016 2:00 pm



STATE OF GEORGIA       
COUNTY OF FULTON                          RESOLUTION NO. 20-08-XXX 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS AUTHORIZING, AMONG OTHER THINGS, 
THE EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS RELATING TO THE 
ACQUISITION OF LAND AND DISPOSITION OF LAND FOR A PARK 
AND FOR OTHER RELATED PURPOSES 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia 
have determined that it is in furtherance of public good that the City should trade and exchange 
the real property commonly known as the Chattahoochee River Park acquired by the City on March 
17, 2010 from Fulton County, Georgia through a Quitclaim Deed recorded in Deed Book 49534 
at Pages 542-47 consisting of approximately 233.538 acres (hereinafter “the Chattahoochee River 
Park”) for the real property known as Tax Parcel ID numbers 08 360001570374,  08 
360001570382, and  08 280001420208 (not including the house and the surrounding property) 
consisting of approximately 269.10 acres and owned by Taylor Glover as shown in two Limited 
Warranty Deeds recorded in Deed Book 57638 at Pages 203-05 and Pages 206-07 (hereinafter “the 
Glover Property”) (the transaction hereinafter referred to as “the Exchange”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattahochee Hills has sucessfully condemned certain 

conservation rights that formerly encumbered the Chattahoochee Rive Park; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council finds it prudent to adopt this Resolution 

stating its intention to complete the Exchange as expeditiously as possible and to authorize the 
Mayor to execute any and all documents necessary to complete the Exchange. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY 

RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Chattahoochee Hills as follows:  
  
Section 1. Findings.  The Mayor and Council formerly approved the Exchange 

and after comdeming the conservation rights that had encumbered the Chattahoochee River Park, 
the City is now properly positioned and prepared to complete the Exchange. 
 

Section 2. Authorization of Limited Warranty Deed.  The Mayor is hereby 
authorized to execute a Limited Warranty Deed in favor of Taylor Glover or his designee 
transferring ownership of the Chattahoochee River Park and simultaneously receive a similar deed 
for the Glover Property .   

 
Section 3. General Authority.  The Mayor and the Clerk are hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may 
be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the documents herein authorized and 
as may be necessary to carry out the purposes and intents of this Resolution.   

 
Section 4. Actions Ratified, Approved and Confirmed.  All acts and doings of 

the officers, employees or agents of the City which are in conformity with the purposes and intents 
of this Resolution are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

 



 
 

Section 5. No Personal Liability.  No stipulation, obligation or agreement 
contained in this Resolution or in the documents authorized hereby shall be deemed to be a 
stipulation, obligation or agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the City in his or her 
individual capacity, and no such officer, agent or employee shall be personally liable or be subject 
to personal liability or accountability. 

 
Section 6. Severability of Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the 

agreements or provisions contained in this Resolution or the documents authorized hereby shall be 
held contrary to an express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though not 
expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, 
then such agreements or provisions shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the 
remaining agreements and provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the other 
valid agreements and provisions. 

 
Section 7. Repealing Clause.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with 

the provisions herein contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 
 

Section 8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 

 
Adopted this 4th day of August, 2020. 
 

CITY OF CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS, 
GEORGIA 

 
 

 
 

Mayor: _____________________________ 
 Tom Reed 
 

 
Attest: ______________________________ 

Dana Wicher, City Clerk 
 
 
(Seal)  

 


